
Meeting agendas and written materials supporting agenda items, if produced, can be received by the public for free in advance of the meeting 
by any of the following options: 

 A paper copy viewed at the District office, 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 during business hours or mailed pursuant 
to a written request and payment of associated mailing fees 

 An electronic copy received by email. Note - a form requesting email delivery of agendas and/or meeting materials must be 
completed a minimum of one week in advance of the meeting 

 Viewed on the Board page of the District’s website 

 A limited number of copies of agenda materials will also be available at the meeting 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the LDPCSD 
Board Secretary at (209) 852-2251 Ext. 2. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure 
accessibility 

 

  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District         DIRECTORS 
9751 Merced Falls Rd. La Grange, CA 95329                                                Dan Hankemeier, President 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org                      Emery Ross, Vice President  
                        Dan Johnson 
            Russell Warren 
                Nellie Sperry 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

April 17, 2023 at 1:00 p.m. 
 

Mission Statement: The Lake Don Pedro CSD is dedicated to providing our customers with ample 
quantities of high quality water meeting all standards, in a fiscally responsible manner. 

 AGENDA 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board that is NOT ON THE AGENDA A 
maximum of three minutes is allowed each person and a maximum of 20 minutes per topic. Any person wishing to address the 
Board on an item ON THE AGENDA will be given the opportunity at that time. Speakers are encouraged to consult District 
Management or Directors prior to agenda preparation regarding any District matters, as no action will be taken on non-agenda 
issues. 

 
         3. PRESENTATION ONLY:  
              a. Presiding Officer’s Report  
              b. General Manager’s Report: 
                   Grant / Study Updates 
         Current District Projects 
                   Operations Updates 
                    Administrative Updates 
 
          4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered   
   separately as determined appropriate by the President  
 

  a. Read and file the Treasurer’s Report for the period ending March 31, 2023 including        
  summary of claims paid  
               b. Approval of the Minutes of the Special Meeting of March, 14, 2023 and Special Meeting    
  March 16, 2023 
 

5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 
 
     a. Discussion / Information regarding LDP Golf Course, Country Club, and Townhome Lot 
 Buyer Introduction Presentation 
     b. Discussion / Action regarding Correspondence from Tuolumne County Community 
 Development Department Concerning a Zone Change RZ23-004 Assessor’s Parcel numbers 
 076-080-001 & 071-320-25 
     c. Discussion / Approval regarding LDP Baptist Church Meter 

           d. Discussion / Approval regarding Confirmation of the Board Presidents Standing Committee    

1



Meeting agendas and written materials supporting agenda items, if produced, can be received by the public for free in advance of the meeting 
by any of the following options: 

 A paper copy viewed at the District office, 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 during business hours or mailed pursuant 
to a written request and payment of associated mailing fees 

 An electronic copy received by email. Note - a form requesting email delivery of agendas and/or meeting materials must be 
completed a minimum of one week in advance of the meeting 

 Viewed on the Board page of the District’s website 

 A limited number of copies of agenda materials will also be available at the meeting 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the LDPCSD 
Board Secretary at (209) 852-2251 Ext. 2. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure 
accessibility 

 

 Appointments for the 2023 Calendar year 
     e. Discussion / Approval requested by Vice President Ross regarding an increase in Board   
  Member Compensation 
     f.  Discussion / Approval regarding the On- Call Rotation 
     g. Discussion / Approval Resolution regarding Adoption of Out of Class Pay Policy 
     h. Discussion / Approval regarding Payment of Out of Class substitute for Lead Operator 
     i.  Discussion / Information regarding Accounts Receivable Update 
     j.  Discussion / Information regarding Water System Designation  
     k. Discussion / Information regarding DWR (Department of Water Resources) Intake Design   
  Build Update 

  l. Discussion / Action regarding a verbal Update from the Planning Committee Involving the   
    Applications for PG&E NEM 2 for Future LDPCSD Solar and Potential Community Solar 
 

    
  

 6. CLOSED SESSION: 
    a. CLOSED SESSION 
        PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
             GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(b)(1) 
             Title:  Lead Operator 
 
  b. CLOSED SESSION 
      PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
           GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(b)(1) 
           Report from Subcommittee 
           Title:  General Manager 
 
 
      7. ADJOURNMENT: 

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

  

 
      
 

April 17th, 2023 
 
Thankfully, the relentless precipitation has eased, and District staff are able to work effectively 
within the system. Fortunately, at this time distribution system leaks have been minimal. Staff 
are eager to jump on system projects that we have been unable to address due to extreme 
weather.   
 
Water demand is increasing with the season change, and staff have been extremely active 
preparing our treatment plant in anticipation of summer high demand. We are thankful for the 
continued support from District residents in reporting potential leaks!    
 
 
   
 
In addition to finding me in my office, I can reached at the following: 

 District phone – (209) 852-2331 
 E-mail - Patrick@ldpcsd.org 

	
 
Grant/Study Updates 
 
DWR BARRETT COVE RAW WATER INTAKE PROJECT- PLEASE SEE 
ATTACHED STAFF REPORT 
 
USDA LOAN / RAW WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT‐ Robert Neilson, the State Engineer, 
is preparing the Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) for the Raw Water Intake Pump Station. 
This will save the District the expenses associated with writing a PER. The PER would then be 
used to formally apply for funding through the USDA. We anticipate the USDA will provide the 
required funding for the project, but it currently unknown what amount of the funding will be 
grant versus low-interest loan. 
 
DWSRF- LDPCSD submitted a grant application to the Department of Water Resources for 
Water Treatment Plant Modernization in 2015. Working with our engineer, I recently adjusted 
the proposed scope of work.  I am currently working with project administrator to submit any 
reimbursable expenditures to date.  
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

3



 

 2

Current District Projects 
 

 EMERGENCY LEAK CREW – We have replaced two service leaks since our last 
meeting.  
 

 PORTER RAW WATER MAIN LEAK- We have identified an additional raw water 
leak located on the corner of Barrett Cove & Merced Falls Road. We have placed an 
order for the appropriate parts to fix this issue. Once received we will schedule 
accordingly.   
 

 WATER TREATMENT FILTERS – Our filters are not performing. District staff have 
built and installed pressure gauges to measure high turbidity spikes with low head loss 
throughout our filtering process. With the installation of the gauges in the top of the filter 
under the air relief and measuring the pressures of the individual cells when the filters go 
online after the back wash and right before the need backwash, we can see if adjusting 
the media size or changing mechanical issues (back wash pump, is our best option.  

 
 SCADA STATE REPORTS- In our 2022 Sanitary Survey Report the State requested 

additional information for monthly reports. We have worked with our contracted controls 
vendor to provide the Peak Hourly Flow report requested to State prior to deadline date.  
 

 VIOLETTA HYDRANT – We have identified an isolation valve and hydrant to be 
replaced. In order to make appropriate repairs, there will be approximately 17 homes 
affected when project is scheduled. Staff have notified all customers and we are working 
around weather forecast to complete project efficiently and safely.    
 

 10” INFLUENT METER INSTALLATION – Staff replaced the non-operable 10” 
influent meter head register. We are hoping this meter lasts 40 years as the last.  
 

 TREATMENT PLANT INSTRUMENTATION – Operations staff performed all 
servicing, cleaning, and re-calibration of treatment plant instrumentation.  
 

 2000 CATERPILLAR BACKHOE – We recently had our 250-hour service on our 
backhoe. The District received a long list of mitigation items to address. I am planning to 
budget for these repairs in FY 2023-2024 Budget.   
  

 SEDIMENTATION BASIN – Operations staff have begun emptying & cleaning 
sedimentation basin weekly to ensure water quality meets standards. This maintenance 
item requires 2 to 3 operators for approximately half a day to perform duties.    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4



 

 3

Operations 
 

 SERVICE ORDERS  & USA’S – This past month we have completed 22 service order 
requests & 33 USA Tickets included: 

 
- 14 meter reads, for properties being transferred or sold 
- 4 possible leaks 
- 2 pressure issues     

 
 MONTHLY METER READS - Staff performed 1526 monthly meter reads for billing. 

We read approximately 350 of these meters manually.    
 

 USA NORTH 811 – Underground Service Alert is a non-profit organization that links the 
excavation community and the owners of the underground lines. LDPCSD receives USA Ticket 
requests daily to locate and mark our existing water lines for a planned excavation. PG&E and 
their subcontractors have been extremely active in our community.  

 
 WATER SAMPLES - Working with our water lab under the guidance of the SWRCB, 

District staff grab water samples on the 1st or 3rd Tuesday of each month.  
 

 WATER STORAGE SITE INSPECTIONS – Field staff are in the process of visiting 
each water storage facility, and hydro-pneumatic station in order to perform preventive 
maintenance on pumps, visually inspect all components and cleanup area.  
 

 WATER QUALITY – Water quality has not been consistent. With the continued 
rainstorms, runoff has made treating water difficult. Treatment operators have been 
diligent, performing jar tests, and adjusting chemical dosages to maximize water quality 
while also minimizing costs associated.   

 
 
Administrative 
 

 
 MONTHLY STATE REPORTING – The report is a combination of data provided 

throughout the month. Reports submitted are CT (concentration, contact time) referring 
to chlorine within our system, WQP report which tracks all chemicals used, backwashing, 
water quality, and bacteriological testing report that reports the potential indicating 
presence of E coli or fecal coliform bacteria in our water.   
 

 WATER SYSTEM DESIGNATION – PLEASE SEE ATTACHED STAFF 
REPORT   
 

 SCADA REPORTING – I have worked with our controls contractor to provide a new 
monthly Peak Hourly Flow report the State has requested. This report will assist in 
identifying when water quality is of poorer quality during water production.  
 

5



 

 4

 ACTING / OUT OF CLASS PAY POLICY – PLEASE SEE ATTACHED STAFF 
REPORT  
 

 DESIGN BUILD CONTRACTOR SELECTION – PLEASE SEE ATTACHED 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 LDPCSD BOARD ELECTION - The ballots were  mailed out March 24th. They will be 
bringing the ballot box to the District to receive the ballots March 27th.  The last day to 
vote will be April 24th and the ballot box will be picked up that day. The ballots will be 
counted by hand.   

 
 ON- CALL ROTATION – PLEASE SEE ATTACHED STAFF REPORT 

 
 OPERATIONS STAFF REPORTING DOCUMENTS – I recently created a series of 

reporting documents to assist operations staff in documenting work performed. These 
documents will help in tracking various District activities, and assist in our 2023 
preventative maintenance program.    

 
 2022/2023 CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT – All documents have been 

completed. We are working with printing company to finalize and distribute to residents.  
 

 DISTRICT REIMBURSMENTS – PLEASE SEE ATTACHED STAFF REPORT 
 

 SWRCB DROUGHT TECHNICAL MONITORING ORDER – This in depth 
monthly report tracks the usage of all District water sources.  

 
 MARCH DAILY TASK BREAKDOWN – PLEASE SEE ATTACHMENT   

  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
________________________ 
Patrick McGowan, General Manager 

6



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Patrick McGowan  
Date: April 17th, 2023 
Subject: Reservoir Level Update               
     

Description – Reservoir Level  
 
March 6th, 2023                  April 6th, 2023 
 809.72’ Above Sea Level                                          825.60’ Above Sea Level 
 674,941 Acre Feet Water Storage                             749,576 Acre Feet Water Storage 
     
 
74,635 Acre Feet INCREASE in Storage 
24 Billion Gallons of Water decrease 
15.88’ Increase in Reservoir Level 
Seasonal Rainfall Total = 32.87” 
 
Reservoir level April 6th 2022 = 726.12’       Rainfall = 11.26” 
Reservoir level April 6th 2023 = 825.60’       Rainfall = 32.87” 
 

 
 

 
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



 

 Lake Don Pedro Community Services District         DIRECTORS 
9751 Merced Falls Rd. La Grange, CA 95329                                                Dan Hankemeier, President 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org                      Emery Ross, Vice President  
                        Dan Johnson 
            Russell Warren 
                Nellie Sperry 

Special Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

La Grange, CA  

Tuesday March 14, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 

The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District held a special  

meeting at 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329  

President Hankemeier called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m.  

Directors present: Hankemeier, Ross, Johnson, Warren 

Director Sperry arrived 10:30 a.m. 

Also present: GM P. McGowan   

Also present: Board Secretary: S. Marchesiello   

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
     The Board of Directors received no public comments 
 
         3. PRESENTATION ONLY:  
              a. Presiding Officer’s Report  
    None at this time 
 
              b. General Manager’s Report: 
                   Grant / Study Updates  
         Current District Projects 
                   Operations Updates 
                    Administrative Updates 
           Presented by GM P. McGowan 
 
          4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered   
     separately as determined appropriate by the President  
 

 a. Read and file the Treasurer’s Report for the period ending February 28, 2023 including  
     summary of claims paid  
               b. Approval of the Minutes of the Special Meeting February 21, 2023 and Special Meeting  
  March 2, 2023   
 
     Motion: To approve the consent calendar 
                   Votes: Carried 5-0  
                 First: Johnson  Second: Warren 
                  Ayes: Johnson, Warren, Ross, Hankemeier, and Sperry 
     Nays:  
 

5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 
    a. Discussion / Information Only Item: Update on the 2022 LDPCSD Sanitary Survey Report /  
        Findings 
        Information Item Only - No Action Taken 
 
 
 
 

16



 

    b. Discussion / Information Only Item: Update to the 2023 LDPCSD Maintenance Plan 
 
  Direction from the Board of Directors for the General Manager P. McGowan to bring         
  the Maintenance Plan back for re-review in December 2023 or sooner if completed 
 earlier and the work sheets be completed and brought back in and list what cross 
 training took place within that time  
 
    c. Discussion / Information Only Item: LDPCSD Operator Certification Report 
        Direction from the Board of Directors for the General Manager P. McGowan to bring  
        back document from the state what certificates are required to operate our plant 
 

          d. Adoption of a Resolution Approving Agreement with John Blomberg, CPA for the Completion  
    of the Annual Audit for the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2023, 2024 and 2025 

 
     Motion: To approve the resolution approving the agreement with Jon Blomberg, CPA   

  for the completion of the annual audit for the Fiscal Years ending June 31, 2023, 2024,  
    and 2025 

             Votes: Carried 5-0  
              First: Hankemeier  Second: Warren 
              Ayes: Johnson, Warren, Ross, Hankemeier, and Sperry 
       Nays: 
 

    e. Discussion / Approval request from Director Warren Regarding Applications for PG&E NEM 2 
   for Future LDPCSD Solar and Potential Community Solar  
 

      Motion:  LDPCSD Board is requesting Dan Modiseette from Efficient Energy    
   Renewable Energy Consultant to complete and secure the NEM 2 contracts for various 
    electrical sites within our District.  

              Votes: Carried 4-1  
              First: Johnson  Second: Warren 
              Ayes: Johnson, Warren, Hankemeier, and Sperry 

     Nays: Ross 
 
Close Open Session: 11:42 p.m. 
Reconvene: 2:40 p.m. 
 
6. CLOSED SESSION: 

           a. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
    Government Code section 54957 
               Title: Operations Lead 
 
           REPORT OUT: The employee will be paid through Thursday March 16, 2023 
 
        b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS   
               Pursuant to Government Code § 54956.8  
                Property:                                            Groundwater well property                                  
                Agency Negotiator:                            Patrick McGowan 
                Negotiating Parties:                           District and Owner  
            Under Negotiation:                             Price, Terms and Conditions 
 
           REPORT OUT: Nothing to report on this item 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 

 c   CLOSED SESSION 
          PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
          Government Code 54957(b)(1) 
          Title: General Manager 
 
          REPORT OUT: Nothing to report on this item 
            
     7. ADJOURNMENT: 2:41 p.m. 
  
    Respectfully submitted by, 
 
        S. Marchesiello 
         Board Secretary 
 
 

18



 

 Lake Don Pedro Community Services District         DIRECTORS 
9751 Merced Falls Rd. La Grange, CA 95329                                                Dan Hankemeier, President 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org                      Emery Ross, Vice President  
                        Dan Johnson 
            Russell Warren 
                Nellie Sperry 

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

La Grange, CA  

Thursday March 16, 2023 at 10:30 a.m. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance 

The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District held a special   

meeting at 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329  

President Hankemeier called the meeting to order at 1:30 a.m.  

Directors present: Hankemeier, Ross, Johnson, Warren, and Sperry 

Director Sperry left the meeting at 12:42 p.m. 

Also present: GM P. McGowan    

Also present: Board Secretary: S. Marchesiello     

 
2. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 
    a. Discussion / Action: Approval of the Employee Complaint Form  
 

         Motion: To accept the complaint form and make available to employee’s  
               Votes: Carried 4-0  
               First: Warren  Second: Ross 
               Ayes: Warren, Ross, Johnson, and Hankemeier 

          Absent: Sperry  
 
    b. Discussion / Action Approval of a Policy for Out of Class Pay 
 

         Motion: To approve the G.M. P. McGowan to bring back a policy for this item 
               Votes: Carried 5-0  
               First: Hankemeier   Second: Warren 
               Ayes: Hankemeier, Warren, Johnson,, Ross, and Sperry 

  Nays: 
 

 Close Open Session: 10:30 a.m. 
Reconvene: 1:47 p.m. 
 
3. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

    a. Closed Session---Government Code 54957(b)(1) 
       PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
       Title: Operations Lead 
 
     REPORT OUT: The Board considered the employees return to work regarding prior    
     complaint took action pending legal counsel response  
 
 
 
 

19



 

 
    b. Closed Session---Government Code 54957(b)(1) 
              PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 

       Title: General Manager 
 
       REPORT OUT: The Board took action to discipline the General Manager 
 
 
 

    c. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
         [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2),(4)] 

        Number of Potential Cases: 2 
 
      REPORT OUT: No action taken 

  
     4. ADJOURNMENT:  
 
    Respectfully submitted by, 
 
         S. Marchesiello 
         Board Secretary 

20



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: April 17th, 2023 

Subject: LDP GOLF COURSE INVESTMENT GROUP        

 

Description – 

I received an email from Brett Baumann, Investment broker on March 5th, 2023 listed 
below: 

Mr. Baumann: I would like to introduce Rahul Chitturi who represents an Investment Group who are very 
interested in purchasing the subject properties.  Patrick and I had a conversation regarding what you need 
from Rahul and when you need it to get on your Agenda for upcoming Board Meetings. Can you please 
reiterate what you need and timelines? 

Mr. McGowan: Thank you Brett, and nice to meet you Rahul. As mentioned in past conversations It is 
extremely difficult to provide you the information requested, prior to discussing plan/intentions with the Lake 
Don Pedro Community Services District Board. In order to be placed on an agenda for discussion please 
follow the attached document. Our scheduled March meeting has been moved up to March 14th. This agenda 
is heavy and I believe April’s scheduled meeting on 17th   would be ideal. Please let me know if there is 
anything I can assist with, and thank you once more! 

Mr. Rahul: Could you please add LDP Golf Course to the April17th agenda? 
 
At a high level we have these questions. We can discuss more during our call 
1. Most importantly, how do we provide waste water from the surrounding community to water the golf 
course? Is there some setup already or do we need to pay for the setting it up? How much would it cost to 
keep the golf course green throughout the year? 
2. Does each of the 100+ lots have water and sewer connected to the County? 
3. Do we have the county water and Sewer for the main club house? I wasn't sure if the current water is based 
on the well or connected to the city. 
 
Thanks, 
Rahul 
 
Upon completion of community discussion, the Board should vote to direct me to either 
provide requested information or not at this time.  

 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

21



 

 
 

 

From:  Syndie Marchesiello  

Date: 4/13/23 

Subject:  Correspondence from Tuolumne County Community Development 

 Department Concerning a Zone Change RZ23-004 Assessor’s Parcel 

 Numbers 076-080-001 & 071-320-025 

 
  
Item Description: 
 
LDPCSD received correspondence from the Tuolumne County Development 
Department regarding a lot line adjustment / merger of two properties. The purpose 
of the letter is for LDPCSD to provide requirements or concerns regarding the zone 
change by April 24, 2023 if they choose to. 
 
According to LDPCSD digital map, research conducted found the following: 
 
APN 076-080-001 Lot 1174 is located at the end of Llanura Dr. and is inside the MID 
(Merced Irrigation District) Place of Use Boundary. This property is currently paying a 
yearly availability fee and not receiving water from LDPCSD.  
 
APN 071-320-025 is located outside the MID (Merced Irrigation District) Place of Use 
Boundary and outside LDPCSD District Boundary. This lot is not currently receiving 
water from LDPCSD nor paying a yearly availability fee. 
 
Recommendation:  
LDPCSD Board of Directors provide direction to staff if they want to reply in the 
comment section of the letter and if so provide a detailed response or seek legal advice 
for further research and response.  
 
 
Syndie Marchesiello 
Office Manager / Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: April 17th, 2023 

Subject: LDP BAPTIST CHURCH / RUSS YOUNG        

 

Description – 

I received a request for an agenda item being added to March’s meeting. Due to scheduling issue’s we 

could not approve this request at this time. I spoke with Church representative and informed their item will 

be place on the scheduled April 17th, 2023 meeting.  

 

 

Mr. Young: Per our conversation, I am requesting you to please set aside a spot on this 
March's Water Board meeting to discuss the water meter situation with Lake Don 
Pedro Baptist Church.  If you could RSVP me as soon as you have it confirmed I would 
appreciate it.  
 
Thank You, Russ Young, could also text me a confirmation that you received this request..  

 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

31



This policy supersedes and replaces all previous policies pertaining to Board 
Committee Meetings of the District as of February 16, 2016 

Approved February 16, 2016 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
POLICY TITLE:  Committees of the Board of Directors 
 
POLICY NUMBER:  4060 
 
ADOPTED:  February 16, 2016 
 
PURPOSE:    This policy establishes rules for standing and ad hoc committees and study sessions (workshops).  
 
4060.10  Appointment of Committees.  The Board President shall establish and/or confirm the members of 
the standing committees for the ensuing year no later than the Board's regular meeting in January, as he/she 
deems necessary with the concurrence of a majority of the Board. Standing committees are outlined in B‐100‐
30.   Additionally, he/she shall appoint with the concurrence of a majority of the Board, Ad Hoc committees as 
needed at any time throughout the year. 
 

4060.11   Specific Purpose.  Standing and Ad Hoc committees are created for specific purposes.  The 
performance of all duties and functions by committees is for the purpose of advising and recommending 
actions to the Board of Directors. Reports of standing, special and Ad Hoc committees shall be 
addressed to the Board. 

 
4060.11.1  Definitions of “Specific Purpose” Committees.  
 

a) Standing Committee.  A Standing committee consists of two Board 
members with alternate Board members. Standing committees duties are 
outlined in B‐100‐40.  A Standing committee will meet with District Staff and 
Consulting firms as deemed necessary during the fiscal year in order to fulfill 
the needs of the Board.  

b) Ad Hoc Committee.  An Ad Hoc committee consists of two Board members 
selected during a Regular Board meeting to meet with District Staff and 
Consulting firms to discuss and provide recommendation to the Board 
regarding a Specific Item not covered by the Standing committees. For Ad 
Hoc committees, the committee will be deemed dissolved after its final 
report is made to the Board. 

 
4060.12     Appointment of Chairperson.  The Board President shall designate the committee 
chairperson, who shall determine, in consultation with the District Manager, the date, time, and place of 
each committee meeting.  The chairperson shall make periodic reports to the Board on the committee’s 
progress. 

 

 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Policy and Procedures Manual 

32



This policy supersedes and replaces all previous policies pertaining to Board 
Committee Meetings of the District as of February 16, 2016 

Approved February 16, 2016 
 

 

4060.13     Scope of Responsibility.  The committee shall gather information, explore alternatives, 
examine implications, and offer recommendations to the full Board.  The committee may meet with 
staff and/or District consultants, but shall not interfere with their duties as determined by the Board.   

 
4060.14     Limits on Authority.  The committee shall not speak or act on behalf of the Board, shall 
not conflict with authority delegated to staff by the Board, and shall not attempt to exercise authority 
over staff. 

 
   
4060.20     Periodic Study Sessions.  The Board, by majority vote, may call for a Board study session as deemed 
necessary and appropriate.  A study session may be held separate from the regular meeting of the Board at a 
time and place to be determined by majority vote of the Board.  The study session may be an adjourned regular 
or special meeting.  The District Manager in consultation with the Board President shall recommend appropriate 
items to be discussed at the study session. The agenda will be prepared and posted in the same manner as other 
Board meeting as is set forth in Policy B‐80.  
 

4060.21     Study Sessions and Action Plans.  Study sessions shall generally be conducted to identify 
or determine key issues facing the District and provide the opportunity to develop plans of action that 
addresses those issues with specific actions, along with a timeline and responsibilities for carrying out 
the action plan to achieve District goals.  
 
4060.22   Annual Study Session on Strategic Plan – An annual study session will take place in 
February each year or other such time as mutually agreed upon for the purpose of reviewing the 
continued relevancy of the District Strategic Plan and the progress made during the prior year.  The 
annual study session will the following objectives: 
 

1. For the Board to receive a detailed status report from the District Manager on the progress 
made in achieving the current year goals and objectives  

2. To conduct the required annual review of the strategic plan and confirm its continued relevance 
for the following year 

3. To adopt goals and objectives for the following year 
4. To address any matters of concern to the Board 

 
4060.30  The following shall be standing committees of the Board: 
 

4060.31  Planning Committee; 
 
4060.32  Ordinance Committee; 
 
4060.33  Personnel Committee; 
 
4060.34  Finance Committee; and, 
 
4060.35  Public Information Committee. 

 
4060.40  Duties of the Standing Committees.  Upon direction of the Board, standing committees meet* and 
review District functions, activities, and/or operations pertaining to their respective areas of concern as set for 
the below. 

33



This policy supersedes and replaces all previous policies pertaining to Board 
Committee Meetings of the District as of February 16, 2016 

Approved February 16, 2016 
 

 

 
4060.41  The Planning Committee shall be concerned with the formulation of plans for arranging, 
realizing, and/or achieving District goals. 

 
4060.42  The Ordinance Committee shall be concerned with proposed ordinances, resolutions 
and/or District policies, except those pertaining specifically to personnel. 

 
4060.43  The Personnel Committee shall be concerned with the functions, activities, operations, 
compensation and welfare of District staff. 

 
B4060.44  The Finance Committee shall be concerned with the financial management of the District, 
including the preparation of an annual budget and major expenditures. 

 
4060.45  The Public Information Committee shall be concerned with assuring that information 
regarding the affairs of the District is adequately and appropriately communicated to its constituents 
and the public at large. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



 

 
 

The following are standing committees that will conduct their meetings in compliance with the Brown 
Act: 

 
 Planning: Hankemeier/Warren 

The Planning Committee shall be concerned with the formulation of plans for arranging, 
realizing, and/or achieving District goals. 

 
 Ordinance: Ross/Warren 

The Ordinance Committee shall be concerned with proposed ordinances, resolutions 
and/or District policies, except those pertaining specifically to personnel. 

 
 Personnel: Hankemeier/Sperry (until the new board member is sworn in due to county 

elections issues) 
The Personnel Committee shall be concerned with the functions, activities, operations, 
compensation and welfare of District staff. 

 
 Finance: Hankemeier/Sperry (until the new board member is sworn in due to county 

elections issues) 
The Finance Committee shall be concerned with the financial management of the District, 
including the preparation of an annual budget and major expenditures. 

 
 Public Information: Ross/Warren 

The Public Information Committee shall be concerned with assuring that information 
regarding the affairs of the District is adequately and appropriately communicated to its 
constituents and the public at large. 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

Special Meeting of February 21, 2023 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



Resolution No. 2023-xxx 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

ESTABLISHING BOARD MEMBER REMUNERATION, IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
DIRECTOR’S POLICY 4030, FOR ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS, 

TRAINING, EDUCATION AND CONFERENCES 

WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (herein referred to as 
District) is a local government agency formed and operating in accordance with Section 
§61000 et seq. of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors Policy Manual establishes that Directors shall 
receive a fee for each day of service; 

WHEREAS, the policy also states that the fee shall be annually established by the 
Board at the first meeting in July; 

WHERAS, Board member remuneration is currently $100.00, the maximum allowed 
under CSD Law Government Code Section 61047; 

WHEREAS, if the Board so desires, per CSD Law Government Code Section 61047, it 
may increase the Director fee by up to a 5% inflator each year thereafter; 

WHEREAS, the law provides that no member shall receive compensation for more than 
six (6) days of service in a month. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,  

1. The Board of Directors hereby sets Board Member remuneration to 
increase by a 5 % inflator for Fiscal Year 2024 and not to receive 
compensation for more than six (6) days of service in a month.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community 
Services District on April 17, 2023 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINED: 

42



 
 
APPROVE: 
 
 
______________________________                                                                                   
Dan Hankemeier, Board President 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Syndie Marchesiello, Board Secretary 
 
 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
 

I, Syndie Marchesiello, the duly appointed and acting Secretary of the Board of 
Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, do hereby declare 
that the foregoing Resolution was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, duly 
called and held on April 17, 2023. 
 
 
 

 

43



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: April 17th, 2023 

Subject: ON-CALL ROTATION        

 

Description – 

Operations staff, have agreed to continue two week tours on-call at this time. Below is the set rotation. 

Each staff member will have 1 ½ months off call in between rotation.  

 

Randy Gilgo  
Agustin Campos 
Jose Santana 
Patrick McGowan  

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

44



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: April 17th, 2023 

Subject: ACTING / OUT OF CLASS PAY 

 

Description – 

 

In the event that a LDPCSD position is vacant due to attrition, extended leave, or on assignment and unable 

to perform their normal assigned duties, someone must step up to perform vital work related 

responsibilities. A request for higher compensation for employee performing additional work tasks shall be 

submitted to General Manager, if the employee meets minimum training and experience standards & is 

responsible to fully perform the scope of duties normally associated with the vacant position.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

45



46



RESOLUTION 2023-xx 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OFTHE 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
A P P R O V I N G  P O L I C Y  A C T I N G / O U T  O F  

C L A S S  P A Y   
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (herein referred to as District) is a local government agency formed 
and operating in accordance with Section §61000 et seq. of the California Government Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Out of Class / Acting Pay is performing the full range of duties and responsibilities allocated to an existing classification 

more than 50% of the time; and 

 
     WHEREAS, is not allocated to the classification in which the person has a current, legal appointment  
 

 WHEREAS, employees directed to work continuously in a vacant higher level regular position and perform work at the high level 
for more than one hundred and sixty (160) hours; and   

WHEREAS, subject to the other provisions of this paragraph, receive a salary rate increase to the higher level retroactive to the first 

hour of the higher level assignment; and 

  WHEREAS, no additional compensation shall be paid where the employee is not directed to perform the higher level work for more 

than one hundred sixty (160) continuous hours 

  WHEREAS, such increase shall be determined as if the assignment had been a promotion retroactive to the first day of such 

assignment. A  vacant position is defined as an authorized regular position that is unoccupied due to attrition, the incumbent being 

on an extended leave of absence, or the incumbent being on an assignment that keeps them from performing their normally 

assigned duties  
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSOFTHELAKE DON PEDRO 
COMMUNITYSERVICES DISTRICT SHALL APPROVE POLICY ACTING / OUT OF CLASS PAY.    

 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services 

District on April 17th, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: ( )  

NOES:     ( ) 
ABSENT:  ( )  

ABSTAIN:   ( ) 
 
        ____________________________ 

 
      Dan Hankemeier, President, Board of Directors 

 

ATTEST: 
  

Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
(STATE OF CALIFORNIA) (COUNTY 
OF MARIPOSA) 

 

I, Syndie Marchesiello, the duly appointed and Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro 
Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly passed and 
adopted at a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District 
duly called and held at the District office at 9751 Merced Falls Road, La Grange, CA 95239, on April 17th, 
2023. 

47



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: April 17th, 2023 

Subject: EMPLOYEE REIMBURSMENT        

 

Description – 

In the absence of our Water Operations Lead from 8/24/22 – 3/13/23, District employee Operator II 
performed at least 50% of the Operations Lead job duties. I would like to move forward with compensating 
him for work performed. The operator worked 968 hours in this acting supervisory role. The difference in 
compensation is $2.09 an hour, leaving the proposed reimbursement of $2023.12.  
 

 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

48



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: April 17th, 2023 

Subject: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE        

 

Description – 

Our District has been extremely active repairing and upgrading our water system. This has been blatantly 
apparent in our financial records. Between now and the end of the fiscal year our District will receive 
substantial capital reserves from income sources other than water service, and commodities sales.  
 
102,594.97 Mariposa & Tuolumne County availability fees 
79,466.14   DWR Raw Water Intake Upgrade Reimbursable II 
50,967.70   Verizon Wireless Cell Tower lease negotiated 5 year upfront payment  
35,780.84   DWSRF Plant Modernization Reimbursable I 

$268,809.65 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

49



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: April 17th, 2023 

Subject: WATER SYSTREM DESIGNATION        

 

Description – 

Lake Don Pedro CSD Water System designation: T2 / D2 
 
“To summarize; Distribution classification is basic, based on both the size and population of a water 
system. Treatment designation is more complex, as there is a formula to determine the level of 
certification necessary. In addition to staffing the treatment plant,  The SHIFT Operator should be NO 
LESS than one certification level LOWER than is designated for the CHIEF Operator whether 
Distribution or Treatment.” 
 
Bruce Ramsden, LDPCSD State Regulator 
 
Classification of Water Treatment Facility: 
 
The State Board of Drinking Water has set the standards for the designation of a Public water systems 
classification designation. The overall system classification is based on the calculation of total points for 
the facility using the factors specified in attached document.  
 
The attached document gives a description of the numerical designation. The sum of points derived 
from these specific system characteristics gives the overall Treatment Plant Designation. Examples: 
 
-Source Water or Ground Water  
-Water Quality 
-Water Turbidity 
-Type of Filtration 
-Type of Disinfection   
 
 
 
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

50



 

Classification of Distribution Systems:  
 
The distribution system for each community and nontransient- noncommunity water system shall be 
classified and designated a numerical value, as our water treatment facility. The overall Distribution 
System classification is based on the overall population served & calculation of total points for the 
distribution system using specified factors in attached document.  
 
Examples: 
 
-Raw Water, Potable Water  
-Quantity of Pressure Zones 
-Quantity of Storage Facilities 
-Largest Pump 
-Disinfectants Applied in System 
 
 
Lake Don Pedro CSD serves a small community of people. With 1,526 water connections we serve a 
community of approximately 2,700 – 3,200 people.   

 

 

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: April 17th, 2023 

Subject: DWR RAW WATER INTAKE CONTRACTOR SELECTION       

 

Description – 

I am extremely excited to let you know that we received five Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) 

from the following Design-Build Teams: 

 
 McGuire Hester 
 Mountain Cascade/Sandis 
 Sierra Mountain Construction 
 Cushman Contracting 
 Syblon Reid General Engineering Contractors  

 
LDPCSD reviewing team consisted of Black Water Engineering Group, Senior P.E / Owner Jeff 
Black & Senior P.E Jesse Franco, and General Manager Patrick McGowan. 
 
In order to properly and consistently review the five Statements of Qualifications the three of us 
independently reviewed using the same scoring matrix & evaluation criteria.  

 
 
Design and constriction experience within the past 10 years, it is desired that the DB Entity 
successfully completed:    

 Construction of at least two (2) and up to five (5) Raw Water Intake and/or Pump 
Station projects, of similar size and complexity to the Lake Don Pedro Community 
Services District Raw Water Intake & Pump Station Project.    

o  
 At least one (1) of each type of project; raw water intake or water suction pipe 

installed underwater and raw water pump station with pumping capacity of 3600 
gpm.   

 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

59



 

 Of the two (2) projects, it is desired that one (1) of the projects utilized a design-
build project delivery method, or a similar project delivery method.   

 
 
The next steps are: 

1. Select qualified teams  
2. Issue the Request for Proposal to the qualified teams 
3. Select the most qualified team to negotiate a contract  

 

60




